
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  
 

East Area Planning Sub-Committee 
 
To: Councillors Moore (Chair), Cregan (Vice-Chair), Douglas, 

Firth, Funnell, Hyman, King, Taylor, Vassie and 
Wiseman 
 

Date: Thursday, 29 May 2008 
 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
Site Visits for this meeting will commence at 10am on Wednesday 
28th May 2008 at St Leonard’s Place Car Park. Alternatively, 
Members can meet at the end of Temple Avenue at 10:15am. 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 

2. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Sub-Committee’s remit can do so. Anyone 
who wishes to register or requires further information is 
requested to contact the Democracy Officer on the contact 
details listed at the foot of this agenda. The deadline for 
registering is Wednesday 28th May 2008 at 5pm. 
 

3. Plans List    
 To determine the following planning applications related to the 

East Area. 
 



 

a) Land Lying to the North East of 52 Temple 
Avenue, York (08/00844/FUL)   

(Pages 5 - 
12) 

 Two detached dwellings with associated access, landscaping 
and parking [Osbaldwick Ward] 
 

b) Wheldrake C of E Primary School, North Lane, 
Wheldrake, York (08/00383/FUL)   

(Pages 13 - 
17) 

 Renewal of temporary consent for a prefabricated building 
[Wheldrake Ward] 
 

4. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972 
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Jill Pickering 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 

• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
Contact details set out above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
EAST AREA PLANNING 

SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
 

SITE VISITS 
 
 
 

WEDNESDAY 28 MAY 2008 
 
 
TIME    SITE       

  
 
 
10:15 am    Land Lying To The North East of 52 Temple Avenue, York  (3a)  

                
 

Members can either meet on site at the end of Temple Avenue or take the 
pool car which will leave St Leonards Place car park at 10.00am. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 3



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 4



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00844/FUL  Item No: a 
Page 1 of 7 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: East Area Ward: Osbaldwick 
Date: 29 May 2008 Parish: Osbaldwick Parish Council 
 
Reference: 08/00844/FUL 
Application at: Land Lying To The North East Of 52 Temple Avenue York   
For: Two detached dwellings with associated access, landscaping 

and parking 
By: Joseph Rowntree Housing Trust 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 6 June 2008 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1  This application seeks planning permission for two dwellings on land situated to 
the north east of 52 Temple Avenue.  Each dwelling would be three storeys in height 
and contain three bedrooms.  The application site is within the "Derwenthorpe" 
development site, which has the benefit of outline planning permission for four 
neighbourhoods of houses each served by their own vehicular access.  The 
Derwenthorpe scheme is likely to consist of approximately 540 dwellings in total.   
 
1.2  The purpose of this application is to create two prototype houses for the 
Derwenthorpe development.  The dwellings to be erected on Derwenthorpe must 
achieve certain environmental standards.  These standards are a minimum of level 3 
under the Code for Sustainable Homes, and maximum carbon dioxide emissions of 
24 kilograms per square metre of gross floor area per annum.  The prototype houses 
will test construction methods to ensure the required environmental standards are 
achieved in the first phase of construction. 
 
1.3  This application has been called in to Committee at the request of Cllr. Moore.  
The reason for calling the application in is the contentious nature of the proposal due 
to it being on the Derwenthorpe site and to assess whether the application 
prejudices the outline application for the entire site. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams  East Area (1) 0003 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYH1 
Housing Allocation  

Agenda Item 3aPage 5



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00844/FUL  Item No: a 
Page 2 of 7 

CYH3B 
Managed Release of Allocated Housing Sites 
  
CYH5A 
Residential Density 
  
CYL1C 
Provision of New Open Space in Development 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
Internal 
 
3.1  Highway Network Management - No objections subject to standard conditions. 
 
3.2  Lifelong Learning and Culture - No commuted sum payment for off-site open 
space is required as this has been agreed as part of the Section 106 agreement for 
the Derwenthorpe site as a whole. 
 
3.3  Environmental Protection Unit - No objections. 
 
External 
 
3.4  Osbaldwick Parish Council - Object: 
- three storey buildings would overpower existing houses in the area and be out of 
keeping; 
- the permission would be premature prior to all reserved matters being agreed; 
- no service details have been supplied; 
- the site level could create flooding problems; 
- the window heights are out of keeping with the buildings. 
 
3.5  Neighbours/Site Notice - One letter of objection received from 52 Temple 
Avenue.  The letter outlined concern that the digging of footings would structurally 
damage the property and that one of the dwellings is being built onto the property of 
52 Temple Avenue.  The letter states that Joseph Rowntree were asked to leave a 
buffer zone of several metres so that properties would not be damaged with the 
digging of footings.  Concern was also raised regarding a loss of light and view which 
the dwelling currently enjoys.  Traffic noise would increase. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
4.1  Key Issues: 
 
- Visual impact on the street scene; 
- Impact on the living conditions of neighbours; 

Page 6



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00844/FUL  Item No: a 
Page 3 of 7 

- Cycle and bin stores; 
- Highways; 
- Sustainability. 
 
4.2  The application under consideration sits within the Derwenthorpe housing site 
which has outline planning consent.  The proposal is a full application with all 
planning issues to be considered in its determination.  The two proposed houses 
would help facilitate the Derwenthorpe development through providing prototype 
houses for phase one of the development, however the proposal should be 
assessed on its own merits.  The principle of developing this site for housing has 
been established through the outline consent.  The two dwellings would be located 
on an allocated housing site, as defined within Local Plan Policy H1. 
 
4.3  The location of the houses is generally in line with the approved Outline 
Masterplan for Derwenthorpe and the approval of this application is not considered 
to compromise the future development of Derwenthorpe.  Temple Avenue will 
become the vehicular access point for Neighbourhood C of the Derwenthorpe 
development.  
 
VISUAL IMPACT 
 
4.3  The proposed dwellings are of a contemporary design and are complimented by 
the use of some traditional materials such as red brick and clay tiles.  The proposed 
dwellings are characterised by large sweeping roofs and large timber framed window 
openings.  The dwellings have a footprint of approximately 10 x 6.6 m with a ridge 
height of 10.8 m.  The height of the dwellings is significantly above those of the 
dwellings on Temple Avenue.  However the bulk of the buildings would be lower than 
the height suggests given the modest eaves height and the sweeping roofs.  The 
proposed dwellings provide accommodation in the roof space which is the reason for 
the additional height.   
 
4.4  The design of the dwellings does not attempt to match those of the surrounding 
area.  However, they are considered to be of high quality and interesting design.  
The finished quality of the dwelling can be assured through the use of a planning 
condition to control construction materials.  A number of dwellings of contemporary 
design have been approved within York.  The dwellings will eventually become part 
of the Derwenthorpe site as a whole and will match the character and appearance of 
the dwellings which were approved as part of the phase 1 development.  
 
LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURS 
 
4.5  52 Temple Avenue has no windows within its side elevation and therefore there 
would be no loss of outlook for residents of this property.  There would be a 
separation distance of approximately 4m between 52 Temple Avenue and the 
proposed dwelling to the northeast.  This is considered sufficient for the dwelling not 
to appear overbearing when viewed from the curtilage of 52 Temple Avenue.  The 
proposed dwelling has no windows in its side elevation facing 52 Temple Avenue 
and therefore there would be no direct overlooking and no significant impact on the 
privacy levels which residents of this dwelling could reasonably expect to enjoy.  A 
bike and bin store is proposed to be erected close to the property curtilage boundary 

Page 7



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00844/FUL  Item No: a 
Page 4 of 7 

between these two dwellings.  However, this is likely to be low lying and not have an 
significant impact on neighbouring amenity. 
 
4.6  Opposite number 52 is 67 Temple Avenue which has a first storey window on its 
side elevation, however this appears to be secondary in nature.  A separation 
distance of approximately 6.6 m would exist between the dwelling of 67 Temple 
Avenue and the proposed house.  The distance from the side curtilage boundary to 
the dwelling would be approximately 4m.  Again this is considered sufficient for the 
dwelling not to appear overbearing or significantly harm outlook.  No windows are 
proposed in the side elevation of the dwelling which faces 67 Temple Avenue and 
thus there are no significant privacy issues.  Both proposed dwellings are north east 
of the nearest dwellings which means that they are not likely to result in a significant 
reduction in the level of natural light entering the neighbouring curtilages. 
 
CYCLE AND BIN STORES 
 
4.7  A secure store is proposed for each dwelling which can accommodate two 
bicycles.  This is in line with the cycle parking standards for a 3 bedroom + dwelling 
house outlined within Appendix E of the  Local Plan, the proposal therefore complies 
with Policy T4.  Details of the design of the cycle store have not yet been submitted 
and this could be controlled by condition. The store would also accommodate refuse 
and recycling bins and boxes in line Local Plan Policy GP1.  This will allow storage 
out of sight of the public domain and enhance the appearance of the street scene. 
 
HIGHWAYS AND CAR PARKING 
 
4.8  As part of the outline consent for Derwenthorpe a number of highway works are 
proposed for Temple Avenue and the surrounding highway network.  These works 
will be carried out before the dwellings within Neighbourhood C are occupied.  The 
application under consideration is separate from the outline consent for the 
Derwenthorpe scheme and no highway works are required at this stage.  Traffic 
generation from the two dwellings is not likely to materially affect the local highway 
network.  Each unit can accommodate off street car parking in line with the maximum 
car parking standards contained within Appendix E of the Draft Local Plan. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY 
 
4.9  One of the main purposes of the application is to demonstrate that it will be 
possible to achieve a minimum Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 for 
Derwenthorpe.  The approved 'Interim Planning Statement on Sustainable Design 
and Construction' states that new dwellings should achieve a minimum of Code for 
Sustainable Homes Level 3.  Therefore the proposed development is in line with the 
Interim Planning Statement.  The primary sustainability measures to be adopted are 
optimising passive solar gain, high levels of thermal insulation, good levels of air 
tightness, and controlled ventilation.   
 
OPEN SPACE 
 
4.10  A commuted sum payment for off-site open space provision/improvement is not 
sought.  This is because as part of the Derwenthorpe scheme both the provision of 

Page 8



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00844/FUL  Item No: a 
Page 5 of 7 

on-site open space and off-site improvements have been agreed.  A condition 
requiring a commuted sum payment in association with this application would in 
essence be double charging the applicants. Therefore Policy L1c of the draft Local 
Plan is not considered relevant in this case.  
 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1  It is considered that this application complies with relevant local planning 
policies and is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years  
 
 2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 
with the following plans:- 
 
Drawing Numbers 2150_PL_131, 230, 231, 330, and 331 received by The CoYC on 
02/04/08 
 
or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority as amendment to the approved plans. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 3  Prior to the development commencing details of the cycle parking areas, 
including means of enclosure, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The building shall not be occupied until the cycle parking 
areas and means of enclosure have been provided within the site in accordance with 
such approved details, and these areas shall not be used for any purpose other than 
the parking of cycles. 
 
Reason:  To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent 
roads. 
 
 4  The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved 
plans for parking and manoeuvring of vehicles and cycles have been constructed 
and laid out in accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such areas shall 
be retained solely for such purposes. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
5  VISQ8  Samples of exterior materials to be app  
 

Page 9



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00844/FUL  Item No: a 
Page 6 of 7 

6  VISQ4  Boundary details to be supplied  
 
 7  Notwithstanding the information contained on the approved plans, the height 
of the approved development shall not exceed 10.8 metres, as measured from 
existing ground level. Before any works commence on the site, a means of 
identifying the existing ground level on the site shall be agreed in writing, and any 
works required on site to mark that ground level accurately during the construction 
works shall be implemented prior to any disturbance of the existing ground level. Any 
such physical works or marker shall be retained at all times during the construction 
period. 
 
Reason: to establish existing ground level and therefore to avoid confusion in 
measuring the height of the approved development, and to ensure that the approved 
development does not have an adverse impact on the character of the surrounding 
area. 
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to the impact on the street scene and the amenity and living 
conditions of neighbours.  As such the proposal complies with Policies GP1, GP4a, 
H1, H3b, H5a and T4 of the City of York Draft Local Plan. 
 
 
 2. Informative 
 
If, as part of the proposed development, the applicant encounters any suspect 
contaminated materials in the ground, the Contaminated Land Officer at the council's 
Environmental Protection Unit should be contacted immediately.  In such cases, the 
applicant will be required to design and implement a scheme remediation to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  Should City of York Council become 
aware at a later date of suspect contaminated materials which have not been 
reported as described above, the council may consider taking action under Part IIA 
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
The developer's attention should also be drawn to the various requirements for the 
control of noise on construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 1974.  
In order to ensure that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution and noise, 
the following guidance should be noted and acted upon. Failure to do so could result 
in formal action being taken under the Control of Pollution Act 1974: 
 
(i) The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the 
general recommendations of British Standards BS  5228: Part 1: 1997, a code of 
practice for "Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open  Sites" and in 
particular  Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and 

Page 10



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00844/FUL  Item No: a 
Page 7 of 7 

vibration". 
 
(ii) All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to 
minimise disturbance.  All items of machinery powered by internal  combustion 
engines must be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained 
mufflers in accordance with manufacturers instructions. 
 
(iii) The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of 
Pollution Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in  order to minimise noise 
emissions. 
 
(iv) All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and minimise 
dust emissions, including sheeting of vehicles and use of water for dust suppression. 
 
(v) There shall be no bonfires on the site 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Michael Jones Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551325 
 

Page 11



Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

Land Lying to the North East of 52 Temple Avenue, 

08/00844/FUL

Not Set

Not Set

19 May 2008

Application Site

1:2500

Page 12



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00383/FUL  Item No: b 
Page 1 of 4 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: East Area Ward: Wheldrake 
Date: 29 May 2008 Parish: Wheldrake Parish Council 
 
Reference: 08/00383/FUL 
Application at: Wheldrake C Of E Primary School North Lane Wheldrake York 

YO19 6BB 
For: Renewal of temporary consent for a prefabricated building 
By: The Board Of Governors 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 2 May 2008 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The application seeks planning permission for the temporary retention of a pre-
fabricated building within the grounds of Wheldrake C of E Primary School.  The 
building is located on a grassed area of land on the corner of North Lane and Broad 
Highway.  The building has been in situ since 1995 and has been used up until 
recently as a temporary classroom.  Planning permission for a classroom extension 
to the school was granted in 2006 as a permanent replacement to this temporary 
classroom.  This temporary building is now intended to be used as a community 
facility including playgroups, breakfast and after school clubs and York Portage 
Service. 
   
1.2 The applicants have stated that the temporary building will be required up until 
the Youth Annex has been extended which is subject to Government Funding under 
the Extended Schools Capital Funding Programme.  They anticipate that a 
permanent building will be completed within 30 months.    
 
1.3 The application is being considered at Planning Committee following a request 
from Councillor Vassie, the reasons for which are set out below at 3.1. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams  East Area (1) 0003 
 
Schools Wheldrake CE Primary 0237 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYGP23 
Temporary planning permission 

Agenda Item 3bPage 13



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00383/FUL  Item No: b 
Page 2 of 4 

CYHE2 
Development in historic locations 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 Cllr Vassie has requested that the application be considered at Planning 
Committee for the following reasons; The recent building work at Wheldrake School 
was approved on the basis that the new building would replace the old unsightly and 
inefficient pre-fabs; the reason for extending the school was because the pre-fabs 
were inefficient and did not comply with legislation on accessibility; the Youth Club 
has never used the pre-fabs; there is a question over whether the building is fit for 
the purpose for which planning permission is sought; the roof leaks and there is only 
one toilet within the building which is inadequate for a class of 6/7 year olds; the 
rules relating to pre-school children will limit the number of children; will pre-school 
children realistically make use of this building; the building would be too small for 
brownies and cubs; the Education Department should demonstrate that there is a 
need to retain this structure. 
 
3.2 A letter of objection has been received from Wheldrake Parish Council on the 
following grounds; the application for extending the school was only supported with 
the agreement that this prefabricated classroom would be removed on completion.  
The classroom is no longer in a fit state for purpose and has now served the purpose 
of its original planning agreement.  
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key Issues 
  
Principle of retaining a temporary building 
Visual Amenity / Impact on adjacent Conservation Area 
 
4.2 Policy Context  
Relevant policies are contained at section 2.2. 
 
4.3 Principle of Retaining a the Temporary Building 
Policy GP23 of the City of York Draft Local Plan specifically relates to temporary 
planning permission, it states that planning permission will only be granted for a 
temporary building for a limited period provided; there is no loss of amenity; there is 
no viable permanent solution; there are plans for a permanent solution; the period for 
which consent is sought is the minimum required to allow the permanent 
development to be implemented; or a trial period is necessary.   
 
In support of the application the School have submitted a statement to justify the 
retention of the temporary building, it states as follows; 
 
1. There is a demand for a small, relatively inexpensive facility for use by community 
groups.  The school has been approached by the allotment association for a venue 
for their meetings.  They have used a classroom in the school for a few meetings but 
these are expensive, current rates for hiring a classroom in school are £46 as it 
involves high costs for energy, caretaking and cleaning and there are implications for 

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00383/FUL  Item No: b 
Page 3 of 4 

the security of the school building.  The temporary unit would be a lot less expensive 
as it is entirely independent in terms of heating, and access could be arranged 
without having to disable the school alarm system. 
2. Although the village does have a number of other venues these are not always 
sufficient to meet the need.  Even without any advertising the school has received 
expressions of interest in using the temporary unit.   
3. Different community groups are competing for space and time in the venues in the 
village.  This proposal would enable an expansion of current provision for the 
community. 
4. With regard to the condition of the temporary unit, the school would undertake 
whatever repairs and maintenance necessary to ensure the unit is well maintained 
and fit for purpose (some repairs are needed to the roof but have been delayed 
pending the outcome of the planning decision). 
5. Retaining the unit is seen as a temporary solution to the lack of facilities.  The 
school will continue to bid for funding to replace the unit with a permanent solution.  
A proposal to extend the youth annex at the school to provide a room suitable for 
use by Early Years providers is currently being considered by CYC under the 
Extended Schools capital programme. 
 
In terms of the requirements set out in Policy GP23; 
 
Loss of Amenity  
In terms of residential amenity the temporary building is located 26 metres from the 
closest dwelling located opposite Broad Highway.  Given this distance and the single 
storey nature of the building it is not considered that the retention of the temporary 
building would be detrimental to residential amenity.   
 
In terms of visual amenity the building is located close to the junction of North Lane 
and Broad Highway and whilst it is partially screened along the western boundary by 
an existing hedge and tree, it will be visible from the wider area.  The building is 
viewed against the backdrop of the school building and is currently painted green 
although this has faded over time.  Subject to the building being repainted, it is not 
considered that it would detract significantly from the visual amenities of the area. 
 
The site is located close to Wheldrake Conservation Area, the boundary of which 
runs along the centre of North Lane.  The temporary building will be visible from the 
Conservation Area, but given its small scale and its location within the school 
grounds it is not considered that it would detract from the character or appearance of 
the Conservation Area.   
 
No Permanent Solution 
The School has submitted a supporting statement outlining the need to retain the 
temporary building for a number of community uses, which for various reasons 
cannot take place within the main school, or the other community buildings within the 
village.    
 
Plans for Permanent Solution 
The school has indicated that they intend to apply for funding under the Extended 
Schools capital programme to provide a permanent solution by extending the youth 

Page 15



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00383/FUL  Item No: b 
Page 4 of 4 

annex at the school.  The school envisage that a permanent solution could be 
completed within 30 months. 
 
Period of Consent  
A condition will be attached to any approval requiring the temporary building to be 
permanently removed from site by November 2010, which coincides with the 
timescales for achieving a permanent solution.  
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The application is recommended for approval, subject to conditions requiring the 
building to be repainted and a date for its permanent removal. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
 1  The building hereby approved shall be permanently removed from the site by 
01.11.2010.  
 
Reason: The temporary nature of the building is such that it is considered 
inappropriate on a permanent basis. 
 
 2  Within three months of the date of this permission the temporary building shall 
be painted in a colour which shall first be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.   
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.  
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to visual amenity and the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area. As such the proposal complies with Policies GP1, GP23 and 
HE2 of the City of York Draft Local Plan. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Kirsty Catlow Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551359 (Tues - Fri) 
 

Page 16



Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

Wheldrake Church of England Primary School

08/00383/FUL

Not Set

Not Set

19 May 2008

Application Site

1:1250

Page 17


	Agenda
	
	
	3a Land Lying to the North East of 52 Temple Avenue, York (08/00844/FUL)
	Map - 52 Temple Avenue

	3b Wheldrake C of E Primary School, North Lane, Wheldrake, York (08/00383/FUL)
	Map - Wheldrake School


